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Note Taker: 
Present:


Meeting 
date/time: 


LOCATION:


Est. Time Agenda Presenter
9:00 1 Call to order D. Shuya


2 Introduction of Council and Executive D. Shuya


9:05
3


Voting Information and Appointment of 
Scrutineers D. Shuya


9:10 4 Agenda
4.1 Approval of Agenda and Consent Agenda D. Shuya
4.2 Approval of Previous AGM Minutes T. Descottes


4.2.1 AGM June 2020 Meeting Minutes


9:15 5 Leadership Reports
5.1 President's Report D. Shuya
5.2 Executive Director & Registrar's Report B. Green


9:25 6 Financial Report
6.1 Jan - May 31 2020 Financial Results C. Cuddington


6.1.1 May 31, 2020 Auditor's Report


9:35 Appointment of Auditor
6.2 Appointment of Auditor C. Cuddington


9:40 7 Bylaw Amendments B. Green
7.1 Administrative Bylaw Amendments


7.1.1 Side by Side of Proposed Amendments


7.1.2 Consolidation with Proposed Amendments
7.2 Fee Bylaw Amendments


7.2.1 Briefing note re: Proposed Amendments
7.3 Regulatory Bylaw Amendments


7.3.1 Side by Side of Proposed Amendments


                            SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS


September 26, 2020


T. Descottes


9:00 am - 10:45 am
Virtual Access via WebEx Events


AGM September 2020 MEETING AGENDA
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7.3.2 Consolidation with Proposed Amendments


10:05 8 Presentations
8.1 Outgoing Council Members D. Shuya


8.1.1 Tasha Descottes
8.1.2 Heather Burridge


10:10 9 Election Results (By Acclamation)


10:15 10
PCE Licensure Requirment Working Group 
Update D. Pitura


10:25 11 Continuing Competency Program Update K. Horvey


10:35 12 Question and Answer Period D. Shuya


10:45 13 Adjournment D. Shuya
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SCPT AGM 2020- June 13, 2020 via WebEx 9-10am 
In attendance: 
Bev Wilson, Lacey Nairn Pederson, Dale Pitura, Daysha Shuya, Cathy Cuddington, 
Christine Epp, Deborah Poncsak, Heather Burridge, Kent Earle, Aaron Awdhan, Krista 
Salter, Lauren McLellan, Lisa Harradence, Marilyn Debnam; Melissa Cursons, Peggy 
Proctor; Richard Bourassa; Suzanne Funk; Tamara Kapell, Sherry Gunderson; Barbara 
Anderson, Moira Stoll; Liz Rackow; Leah White; Anne-Marie Graham; Betsy Mawdsley; 
Pat Beharry; Amanda Crow; Cathy Arnold; Doria Michalishen; Emily Phillips; Gunnar 
Schock; Isobel Johnston; Jaelyse Gorgchuck; JoAnn Nilson; Juliet Sargeant;; Lisa 
Evans; Michelle Keene; Pooja Madnani;  
 
Present: B. Green, T. MacSymetz; J. Grant; J. Hunchak; S. Illerbrun, K. Harrison 
 
Chair: D. Shuya 
Minute Taker- T. Descottes 
 


1. Call to order: 9:00am 
 


2. Introduction of Council and Executive- D. Shuya 
 


- Thank you to Continuing Education in Rehabilitation Sciences (CERS) for making 
WebEx meeting possible 


- Process of how to get IT help during meeting and thank you to Dale, Joy, Willem  
- All documents available through the website 
- Rules following Perry and Perry rules of order 
- Quorum is majority of the number of attendees 
- As per SCPT Policy, Motions from the floor were asked to be pre-submitted and 


none were received 
- Introduction of Council and Executive Committee/School of Rehabilitation 


Sciences representatives/Saskatchewan Physiotherapy Association 
representatives 
 


3. Voting Information and Appointment of Scrutineers 
Motion: to appoint Tammy MacSymetz and Brandy Green as scrutineers for 
AGM 
Mover: D. Pitura 
Seconder: M. Cursons 
CARRIED: MOTION 
 


4. Agenda 
4.1. Approval of Agenda and Consent Agenda 
Motion: to approve the agenda and consent agenda as presented 
Mover: D. Pitura 
Seconder: T. Descottes 
CARRIED: MOTION 
 







 


4.2. Approval of Previous AGM Minutes  
Motion: to approve AGM 2019 Meeting Minutes as previously circulated 
Mover: T. Descottes 
Seconder: L. White 
CARRIED: MOTION 
3 Abstained  
 


5. Leadership Reports 
5.1 President’s Report- D. Shuya 


- full report can be found in the Annual Report 
- thank you to all of the volunteers, executive, Tammy MacSymetz 
- thank you to Brandy Green for filling the interim role of EDR 2x since last AGM 
 


5.2. EDR Report- B. Green 
- full report was pre-circulated in the Annual Report 
- thank you for all of the committees and their chairs 
- Special acknowledgement of Policy Development Committee and Continuing 
Competency Committee- who have been doing a lot of work this year 
- thank you to the Executive Committee 
 
Questions/Discussion: 


- What are the plans for EDR? 
o EDR is interim until October 
o Will be discussed at next Council meeting- those minutes once approved 


will be put on the website 
 


6. Financial Report 
6.1. 2019 Financial Results 
 
Motion: to accept the 2019 financials as circulated in Annual Report  
Mover: L. Rackow 
Seconder: T. Kapell 
CARRIED: MOTION 
 


Discussion: 
- Income is high compared to budget for a few reasons 


o SCPT budget for discipline is an unknown, and hearings are expensive 
but there was little activity for discipline committee 


o Investment was higher than budgeted.  As a point of information, SCPT 
reviewed our strategy and agreed to keep them conservative- will continue 
to have them in secure GICs to mitigate losses 


o Some of the projected work that was budgeted for was not done 
 
Questions regarding 2019 financials? 


- None received  
 







 


6.2 2020/2021 Budget 
 6.2.1. January 2020-May 2020 
 6.2.2. June 2020-May 2021 
Discussion: (January 2020- May 2020) 


- Difficult to make a 5 month budget and extra difficult as most of the income 
comes in during that time (from registration) 
 
Discussion: (June 2020 – May 2021) 


- Lots of projects on the plan for that time frame (one time projects) 
- Large amount budgeted for process of recruitment for new EDR 
- Strategic objectives- these are some of the one time costs that are going on 
- Projected deficit budget for next year, however, SCPT is not planning to increase 


fees for 2021 as we intend to use previous years’ surplus to meet the financial 
objectives of this year 


 
Question:  


- What are the proposed projects? HR Manual; Public Survey; Accounting 
Advisory; CCP Project 


- Alliance Fees- why is there an increase? This is set by the Alliance and the fee 
increases 2%/year for the registrant levy (based on the number of registrants); 
we also pay a flat membership cost of $500, which has not increased recently. 
Alliance committee/representative expenses also increased in the budget- 
secondary to the addition of a third face to face meeting each year. 


- Budget spreadsheets also available in the Annual Report for further clarifications 
- Did the budget take into account the different timelines for the students (post 


pandemic)- it did 
- Cathy is open to any questions if anyone has further questions after the meeting 


 
Motion: to approve June 2020-May 2021 Budget as presented 
Mover: C. Cuddington 
Seconder: L. Rackow 
CARRIED: MOTION 
 
6.3. Appointment of Auditor 
Motion: to appoint Thorpe and Co as auditor for January 2020 to May 2020 year 
end audit 
Mover: C. Cuddington 
Seconder: D. Poncsak 
CARRIED: MOTION 
 


7. Administrative Bylaw Amendments 
7.1 Admin Bylaw 18- Electronic Attendance 
Motion: to approve Admin Bylaw 18 as circulated 
Mover: J. Nilson 
Seconder: L. Nairn Pederson 
CARRIED: MOTION 







 


 
7.2. Admin Bylaw 21- Year End 
Motion: to approve amendments to Admin Bylaw 21 as circulated 
Mover: L. White 
Seconder: M. Cursons 
CARRIED: MOTION 
 
7.3. Fee Bylaw Amendments 
Motion: to approve changes to Fee Bylaws as circulated 
Mover: M. Cursons 
Seconder: K. Horvey 
CARRIED: MOTION 
1 Abstain 
 


Discussion: 
- No regulatory bylaws to be taken to government at present- have just found out 


that they have resumed acceptance of same, so may be able to bring some to 
September AGM 


- Question: what is extended access license? Answer provided for same 
 


8. PCE Licensure Requirement Working Group- D. Pitura 
- COVID delayed this project 
- Had done a lot of literature review prior to COVID; developed list of questions to 


ask Alliance and the SRS- submitted to both and then COVID came 
- Alliance and the SRS are providing answers 
- Once have the information, committee will reconvene and decide on further 


progress 
- Will determine if further evidence is required and then do up their report and 


make their recommendations to Council 
- Thank you to the committee members 


 
9. Continuing Competency Program Update- K. Horvey 
- Overview of the plan proposed by CCC 
- The program will be fluid 


Questions: 
- Who will be vetting the documents? 


o The first year- will be using the first year as a trial to see what kind of 
documents members submit and may have to change accepted 
templates; as such the Continuing Competency Committee will be doing 
much of the review that year. SCPT will then be considering staffing 
requirements to manage the process moving forwards. 


- Wanting the program to be sent to the SHA Clinical Standards and Professional 
practice portfolio (Director- Lisa Harradence) 


o CCP to reach out to Lisa after the meeting  
 


10. Adjournment: 10:07am 








SCPT President’s Report: AGM Sept 2020 
 
2020 has brought and incredibly unique experience that I highly doubt anyone envisioned being 
a part of.  I don’t think ‘Pandemic Protocol Creation’ was in anyone’s budget, nor did many 
private practice physiotherapists ever imagine being out of work during a health care crisis.  So 
many public practice physiotherapists were re-allocated, and adapted on the fly.  The School of 
Rehabilitation Sciences had to transition online, making curriculum changes and practicum 
adjustments nearly overnight!  The genuine concern for student and patient safety is to be 
commended.  As a profession, we have had a chance to prove what we are as physiotherapists- 
critical thinkers that thrive in uncertainty.   
 
As President of the Saskatchewan College of Physical Therapists, this is a report filled with 
gratitude to all of those around me.  Thank-you to the Executive Committee for the 
innumerable hours of meeting, planning, calming and preparing.  Thank-you to Brandy Green 
for stepping into the Interim Executive Director position, which she has agreed to fulfill until 
spring of 2021, allowing us to minimize transition as the Pandemic continues.  Thank-you to 
Dale Pitura for coming in as a Pandemic Advisor, working with Brandy to create the Guidelines, 
FAQs and respond to our membership as quickly as information became available.  
 
Thank-you to Council and Committees for all of the work that is still happening and still 
progressing.  Even though our clinical worlds had come to a standstill, for those of you that 
used that time to work on our projects, thank-you.  To CERS, thank-you for putting webinars 
together and supporting our AGMs.  A most sincere thank-you to Tammy MacSymmetz, our 
Registration and Operations Manager.  Tammy has been our stability in the office, and her 
dedication to the SCPT is greatly appreciated.  To Tasha Descottes and Heather Burridge whose 
terms on Council are coming to an end, your contribution to the Council of SCPT has been truly 
appreciated.  Thank-you for the energy, wisdom and experience brought to Council activities.   
 
For every question that came into the College office, it was valued.  Membership questions 
made us stronger, better and accountable.   For those of you that emailed or called, thank-you 
for helping us direct our communication and source information that would be useful.  As 
outlined in our Executive Directors’ report, we have continued moving forward with several 
projects from our Strategic plan, striving to make Saskatchewan a leader in professional 
regulation.  
 
With respect, 
Daysha Shuya 
President, SCPT 








September 2020 Executive Director & Registrar’s Report 


The January 2020 to May 2020 period was quite busy for the SCPT, as it was for most organizations, with 
having to develop a strategy to cope with the COVID 19 pandemic. SCPT developed two pandemic 
practice advisor roles to assist the EDR and the Executive Committee in developing the Re-Opening 
Clinics Guidelines, FAQ documents and managing inquiries from membership with respect to the 
implementation of the guidelines and Public Health Orders. SCPT had been meeting with 
representatives from the Ministry of Health, the provincial health regulators group, NIRO (Network of 
Interprofessional Regulators) as well as the national Registrar’s Committee of the Canadian Alliance of 
Physiotherapy Regulators on a weekly basis throughout the initial months of the pandemic to ensure 
consistency and compliance with Public Health Orders.  


Now that the pandemic guidelines have been developed, and there has been no further changes 
recommended by the Ministry of Health, the SCPT has been able to re-focus our energies on some of the 
strategic objectives that we had set out for 2020-2021. These have included the following: 


• The development of a Practice Advisory staff position: a job description has been developed 
for this role and SCPT will be starting recruitment over the winter with the intention of the 
role being implemented in March 2021.  


• Increased social media and website presence with the addition of staffing as required: our 
Communications Committee has completed a full scale review of the website content and 
layout; work has begun by staff to implement the recommended updates. We are in the 
process of completing a public survey to gain a better understanding of what the public 
would like to know and how they would like information to be shared, which will help to 
inform our social media strategy moving forwards. The Practice Advisory staff position will 
also be responsible for developing content for the website and social media for both 
membership and the public. SCPT plans to implement a social media strategy in mid-2021.  


• Survey of membership to determine what they would value from the SCPT: this will be sent 
out over the winter months as well; we look forward to hearing back from membership with 
respect to what would be helpful to them to assist them in complying with the College’s 
regulations. We have also started work on the development of resource documents for our 
Professional Corporations, which should be available prior to December’s Professional 
Corporation renewal period. 


• The completion of our Risk Management Framework and reporting mechanisms: SCPT 
Council will be receiving an educational session on Risk Measurement and reporting 
mechanisms this fall/winter, and then will be moving forward with development of a 
reporting mechanism to assist Council in better monitoring this component of their fiduciary 
duties.  


• Completion and implementation of the Continuing Competency Program: The Continuing 
Competency Committee, along with the assistance of two U of S SRS students, have 
continued to develop the new Continuing Competency Program, which will be implemented 
in January 2021. An educational session will be held during the September 26 AGM, and 
further educational and orientation materials will be posted to the SCPT website by mid-
October to help membership become familiar with the requirements of the program prior to 







implementation. The membership will have until renewals 2022 to submit their first 
competency documents.  


In the past several months, SCPT has also been monitoring the governance/regulatory changes in both 
BC and Alberta closely. The governments of both provinces have released recommendations for changes 
to the regulatory structures for self-regulated professions. BC has already started to implement many of 
these recommendations, and will be moving to amalgamated Colleges over the next few years. SCPT has 
reviewed all of the recommendations out of each province and has started to consider a proactive 
approach to many of the recommendations. Our newly formed Governance and Nominations 
Committee will be taking an active role in this process over the next year or so.  


The SCPT Registration and Legislation Committees have also been very busy over the last few months, 
considering and making recommendations with respect to the bylaw amendments included in the AGM 
package for membership to vote on.  


The SCPT Policy Committee has developed and presented to Council new HR Manuals for Employees and 
for the EDR. They are also currently working on the development of a Governance Procedures Manual 
that will be used in conjunction with the newly approved Governance Policy Manual, which has been 
posted to the SCPT website. Looking forward into 2021, the policy committee will also be working on 
development of Fitness to Practice policies and procedures, a Cultural Humility Policy for SCPT and a 
policy/procedure for the management of sexual harassment/assault allegations as part of the 
complaints management process.  


The Professional Standards of Practice (PSOP) committee has started work on the development of a 
project manager role for a full review of the content of the Practice Guidelines over the next couple of 
years, SCPT will be reaching out to membership to recruit for this role. Further information on this 
project will be available as it progresses. PSOP will also be working on the development of guidelines for 
appropriate billing practices, as well as the use of imaging ultrasound as a therapeutic modality. These 
will be sent out to membership for review once they have been developed.  


SCPT has now completed the majority of the annual declaration audits (Professional Liability Insurance, 
Practice Hours and Criminal Record Checks), thank you for your timely submissions for those who were 
selected for the audits this year. All of the audits have come back satisfactorily thus far. The deadline for 
the Criminal Record Check audit is October 6, 2020 if you were selected and have not submitted yours 
as of yet.   


An EDR report will now be included in each Momentum to keep the membership up to date on the 
operations of SCPT, so I would encourage members to read each issue of the MOMENTUM, as well as all 
emails from SCPT to ensure they are properly informed about regulatory matters and events. SCPT has 
had a few issues with emails bouncing or going to spam folders, so please ensure that your email 
address is current in your SCPT profile and that you have added us as a contact.  


SCPT will be making an effort to include all updates and information on the website www.scpt.org, so 
please let us know if there is information that you would like to see included on the SCPT website to 
assist in your practice decisions. 



http://www.scpt.org/





I would like to thank Tammy MacSymetz for continuing in her role as the Registrations and Operations 
Manager for SCPT.  Her knowledge of the organization and operations continues to be paramount to 
SCPT’s success.  


I would also like to thank the SCPT Executive Committee for the many, many hours they have put in to 
maintain the operations of the SCPT throughout this challenging period. As well as the Council and 
Committees for all of their time and hard work that goes into moving all of the objectives above forward 
and to meet our mandate of protecting the public.  


 


Respectfully submitted  


Brandy Green 
Interim Executive Director & Registrar 
edr@scpt.org 








ITEM Budget 2018 Actual 2018 Budget 2019 Actual 2019 Budget Jan-May 
2020


Actual Jan-May 
2020 Budget 2020/21


Income $383,645 $411,576 $405,500 $421,443 $386,025 $402,233 $418,750
Expenditures $339,099 $333,799 $406,562 $377,243 $263,777 $194,850 $519,044
Net Income $44,546 $77,777 -$1,062 $44,200 $122,248 $207,382 -$100,294


MF 0.95%


MF 0.95%


MF 0.95%
RBC Dominion (2040)


Total Long and Short Term
Target To date
$300,000 $300,000
$50,000 $50,000
$50,000 $50,000
$20,000 $20,000


$420,000 $420,000
Budget Jun 2020-
May 31 2021


$4,512 1600
$1,933 6000


$13,671


Income Account Budget 2018 Actual 2018 Budget 2019 Actual 2019 Budget 2020 (Jan-
May)


Actual Jan - 
May 2020


Budget Jun 2020-
May 31 2021


4010 - Initial Registration $2,400 $3,000 $2,700.00 3900 $900.00 $600.00 $2,400.00
4015 - Monitoring fee $2,400 $2,100 $2,400.00 2850 $225.00 $225.00 $2,250.00
4020 - Practising


$352,800 $364,635 $367,500.00 368865 $375,000.00 $373,160.00 $375,000.00
4030 - Non-Practising $5,625 $6,270 $5,000.00 7850 $6,250.00 $7,645.00 $7,500.00
4035 - Extended Access $0.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00
4040 - Temporary $800 $750 $500.00 400 $250.00 $50.00 $500.00
4050 -  Restricted $7,520 $13,755 $14,700.00 11010 $2,700.00 $9,265.00 $12,500.00
4060 - Incorporation Fees $5,700 $8,000 $6,300.00 6950 $0.00 $150.00 $6,600.00


MEMBERSHIPS $377,245 $398,510 $399,100 $401,825 $385,325 $392,895 $407,750.00
4070 - Late fees $400 $1,010 $500.00 410 $500.00 $2,830.00 $500.00
4080 - Discipline fees $0 $500 $0.00 3500 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4075 -Misc Income $200 $250 $200.00 375.3 $100.00 $275.00 $300.00
4440 - Investment Income $5,500 $10,806 $5,500.00 15332.95 $0.00 $6,232.51 $10,000.00
4461- Use of Database $300 $500 $200.00 0 $100.00 $0.00 $200.00


INTEREST & SUNDRY INCOME $6,400 $13,066 $6,400 $19,618 $700 $9,337.51 $11,000.00
TOTAL INCOME $383,645 $411,576 $405,500 $421,443 $386,025 $402,233 $418,750


SCPT 2018 - 2021 Budget and Financials


Investments


Checking account (TD) $292,912
RBC Cash account $4,424
RBC Dominion (2010) $93,762
RBC Dominion (2020) $93,691
RBC Dominion (2030) $94,407


Disaster


0


Total


Short term $579,196
Long term $466,589


As of March 31 - See statements included $1,045,785


INCOME


Discipline


1820-Furn&Equip asset
1840-Comp Equip asset


1850- Database software
Assets


Designated Funds


Type
Operations


Legal







EXPENSE Budget 2018 Actual 2018 Budget 2019 Actual 2019 Budget 2020 (Jan-
May)


Actual Jan -May 
2020


Budget Jun 2020-
May 31 2021


5510 - Alliance Expense (meeting and 
travel) $6,177 $4,158 $6,743.00 4487.02 $8,500.00 $825.49 $6,000.00
5511 - Alliance Rep Salary Rep $362.80 $1,100.00
5515 - Communications/Nominations 
(Stipend) $1,125 $412 $1,350.00 240 $330.00 $60.00 $500.00
5516 - Finance (stipend) $600 $275 $700.00 615 $250.00 $135.00 $500.00
5517 - Legislation (Stipend) $5,000 $1,813 $3,100.00 930 $1,500.00 $300.00 $1,000.00
5518 - Legislation 2794.43 $738.15 $3,000.00
5520 - CCC (stipend) $950 $252 $910.00 315 $900.00 $195.00 $600.00
5521 - PSOP (Stipend) $650 $350 $870.00 120 625 $495.00 $1,300.00
5524 - PSOP 150 $0.00 $1,000.00
5522 - Registration (stipend) $600 $402 $920.00 390 $330.00 $90.00 $400.00
5525 - Discipline (stipend) $20,000 $9,525 $21,260.00 401.9 $11,458.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
5526 - Discipline hearings $15,000 $15,000.00 1273.73 $7,500.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
5527 - Discipline Comm $8,000.00
5535 - PCC $19,250 $11,937 $17,850.00 8771.36 $7,437.50 $4,857.55 $13,000.00
5536 - PCC stipend $1,530 $2,400.00 2550 $1,000.00 $1,185.00 $2,500.00
5538 - Ad Hoc Committees $7,791 $10,000.00 1638 $10,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
5539 - Ad Hoc Committee stipend $150 $800.00 2565 $500.00 $1,177.50 $1,700.00
5541 - Governance and Nominatons $0.00
5542 - GNC (stipend) $500.00
5560-Committee Honorariums $3,650 $3,550 $3,850.00 3650 $3,850.00 $4,600.00 $1,875.00


Committees $73,002 $42,145 $85,753 $30,891 $54,181 $15,021 $53,475
5610 - Council Exec $3,915 $899 $3,392.00 714.08 $2,700.00 $0.00 $3,000.00
5611 - Council Exec Stipend $325 $930.00 1442.28 $500.00 $1,980.00 $1,500.00
5615 - Council Expenses $20,000 $16,885 $25,968.00 16603.25 $10,500.00 $4,146.14 $17,000.00
5616 - Council Stipend $4,613 $4,654.00 9310.51 $5,000.00 $6,640.65 $9,300.00
5625 - Council (Other) $500 $335 $500.00 1205.31 $1,250.00 $202.55 $1,000.00
5630 - Council Honorariums $6,700 $6,350 $7,925.00 7400 $6,975.00 $8,400.00 $3,950.00


Council Expenses $31,115 $29,407 $43,369 $36,675 $26,925 $21,369 $35,750.00
Strategic Objectives


HR Manual $3,500.00 $1,638.00 $0.00
Public Survey Consultant $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
Accounting Advisory $5,300.00 $6,182.70 $0.00
Cont Competency Program $3,500.00
Practice Guidelines Review $8,000.00


Strategic Objectives $13,800.00 $7,820.70 $16,500.00
5710 - NIRO $300 $0 $300.00 278.07 $300.00 $0.00 $300.00
5715 – Council Education / CNNAR $8,000 $6,416 $8,000.00 8575.89 $4,000.00 $0.00 $8,500.00
5716 - EDR Education $5,000 $5,905 $5,600.00 4464.71 $2,800.00 $0.00 $3,000.00
5720 – Sponsorship $500 $0 $500.00 0 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00
5735 - SPTAG $100 $14 $100.00 135.7 $350.00 $0.00 $350.00
5810 - Alliance fees $15,840 $15,851 $15,830.00 16504.52 $16,859.40 7,024.40$    $17,279.60


External Stakeholders $29,740 $28,186 $30,330 $29,959 $24,559 $7,024 $29,680


EXPENSE







EXPENSE Budget 2018 Actual 2018 Budget 2019 Actual 2019 Budget 2020 (Jan-
May)


Actual Jan -May 
2020


Budget Jun 2020-
May 31 2021


5825 - Software Fees $13,320 $15,444 $13,230 15131 $13,000.00 $6,164.90 $23,200.00
5826 - IT Support for Office $8,300.00


SUPPORT & WEBSITE $13,320 $15,444 $13,230 $15,131 $13,000 $6,165 $31,500
5815 - AMORTIZATION $3,000 $5,008 $3,000.00 4672.38 $1,200.00 $2,025.89 $5,000.00
5840 - Interest and Bank charges $200 $773 $700.00 186.49 $100.00 -$26.10 $700.00
5841- Credit Card Fees-member payments $8,500 $9,453 $8,800.00 9610.21 $8,800.00 $10,080.77 $9,700.00


TOTAL BANK FEES $11,700 $15,234 $12,500 $14,469 $10,100 $12,081 $15,400
EXPENSE Budget 2018 Actual 2018 Budget 2019 Actual 2019 Budget 2020 (Jan-


May)
Actual Jan - 
May 2020


Budget Jun 2020-
May 31 2021


5835 - Insurance $3,500 $3,575 $3,725.00 3558.76 $4,000.00 $1,478.00 $4,000.00
5860 - Office Supplies, Printing, Photocopy $2,552 $5,372 $4,627.00 4442.06 $3,724.50 $2,902.26 $5,047.79


Computer Equipment $2,500 $714 $2,500.00 0 $2,500.00 $1,811.00 $6,000.00
5850-SCPT Professional Memberships $483.22 $730.01 $500.00
5865 - Rent $19,660 $18,232 $20,435.00 19022.44 $9,200.00 $7,588.90 $24,000.00
5870 - Furniture/Equip. $500 o $1,589.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $1,600.00
5875 - Telephone $4,588 $5,731 $5,140.00 6632.32 $3,100.00 $2,142.57 $6,632.00
5877 - Recruit/Relocate $0 $0 $0.00 3593.1 $0.00 $0.00 $11,950.57
5881 - Postage $700 $246 $200.00 94.86 $100.00 $202.88 $100.00
5880 - Staff Training/Education $800 $0 $1,000.00 0 $500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
5885 - Office Miscellaneous $300 $317 0.00 113.63 $150.00 $29.18 $300.00
5890 - Website 526 $221.00 $11,800.00
5891 - EDR Travel Expense 4472 $323.51 $5,000.00
5895 - Reg. & Renewal $1,650 $0 $1,650.00 341.35 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00


TOTAL OFFICE EXPENSES $36,750 $34,188 $40,866 $43,280 $23,275 $17,429 $78,930.36
5805-Accounting Expenses $6,000 $5,550 $11,000.00 8727.07 $6,000.00 $5,355.75 $5,500.00
5845 - Legal Fees $6,000 $9,764 $6,000.00 7709.46 $3,000.00 $12,106.76 $8,000.00


TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES $12,000 $15,314 $17,000 $16,437 $9,000 $17,463 $13,500.00
5420 - EI Expense $2,341 $2,520 $2,816.86 3135.02 $2,000.00 $1,578.57 $3,718.36
5430 - CPP Expense $2,411 $4,753 $3,666.90 4173.83 $2,400.00 $3,540.70 $7,864.54
5440 - WCB Expense $288 $243 $288.00 376.37 $400.00 $189.70 $427.24
5450 -  RRSP'S Employer $2,732 $5,172.00 3805.78 $1,637.79 $1,037.00 $3,965.90
5465 - Salary - E. D. $68,289 $77,172 $68,289.00 72090.28 $40,000.00 $37,593.29 $53,066.64
5471 - Interim EDR Contract 21339 $12,139.20 $45,522.00
5475 - Salaries - Staff $52,211 $64,594 $80,039.00 80634.47 $39,000.00 $33,176.77 $97,872.75
5476- Stat Pay 560.88 $1,687.50
5477 - Temporary Staff $11,000.00
5478 - Practice Advisor $17,160.00
5480 - Employee Benefits $3,200 $4,600 $3,242.00 4285.7 $3,500.00 $1,221.97 $2,024.26


TOTAL WAGES & BENEFITS $131,472 $153,882 $163,514 $190,401 $88,938 $90,477 $244,309.19
TOTAL EXPENSES $339,099 $333,799 $406,562 $377,243 $263,777 $194,850 $519,044





		2018-2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 


To the Directors of Saskatchewan College Of Physical Therapists 


Qualified Opinion 


We have audited the financial statements of Saskatchewan College Of Physical Therapists (the College), 
which is comprised of the statement of financial position as at May 31, 2020, and the statement of 
operations and changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the period January 1 to May 31, 
2020, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 


In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the College as at May 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the period January 1 to May 31, 2020 in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations. 


Basis for Qualified Opinion 


In common with many not-for-profit organizations, the College derives revenue from various sources, 
the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,  verification 
of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the College. Therefore, we were 
not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to revenue, excess of revenues over 
expenses, and cash flows from operations for the period ended May 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, 
current assets as at May 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, and net assets as at January 1 and May 31, 
2020 and January 1 and December 31, 2019. Our audit opinion on the financial statements for the period 
ended May 31, 2020 was modified accordingly because of the possible effects of this limitation in scope. 


We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the College in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit 
opinion. 


Emphasis of Matter - Change of fiscal year end 


We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the change in the fiscal year 
end. The financial statements are prepared for a five month period during 2020 to assist the College in 
changing the fiscal year to be more aligned with the membership period used in operations. Our opinion 
is not modified in respect of this matter. 







INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued ...) 
 


Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the College's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the College or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 


Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the College's financial reporting 
process. 


Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 


As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 


We also: 


• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from an error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. 


• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control. 


• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 







INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued ...) 
 


• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the College's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the College to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 


• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 


We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 


 
 
 
 


Regina, Saskatchewan 


August 12, 2020 Chartered Professional Accountants 







 


SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 


AS AT MAY 31, 2020 
(with figures for December 31, 2019) 


 
 May 31, 


2020 
Dec 31, 
2019 


 ASSETS   


Current assets 
Cash 


  
$ 287,188 


 
$ 87,430 


Temporary investments (Note 5)  748,449 747,061 
Accounts receivable  7,910 5,536 
Prepaid expenses    14,469   4,622 


  1,058,016 844,649 


Property and equipment (Note 6)   19,901   20,116 
$ 1,077,917 $ 864,765 


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 


Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 14,342 $ 8,524 
Deferred revenue   -    500 


 14,342 9,024 


Net assets (Note 7)   1,063,575   855,741 
 $ 1,077,917 $ 864,765 


 
 


See accompanying notes 


Approved on Behalf of the Board 


  Director 


  Director 







 


SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 


FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 TO MAY 31, 2020 
(with figures for the year ended December 31, 2019) 


 
 


 


Jan - May, 
2020 


Jan - Dec, 
2019 


 


 


Revenue  
Memberships $ 392,895 $ 401,825 
Interest and sundry income   9,338   19,618 


   402,233   421,443 


Expenses   
Alliance fees (Note 8) 7,024 16,505 
Amortization 2,026 4,672 
Committee expenses, conferences and travel 18,914 49,460 
Computer support and website 6,386 17,295 
Honorariums 25,621 29,930 
Insurance 1,478 3,559 
Interest and bank charges  10,055 9,797 
Licenses and dues 730 1,216 
Office expenses 3,134 9,457 
Professional fees 17,463 16,437 
Recruitment and relocation - 3,593 


Rent  7,589 19,022 
Telephone 2,143 6,632 
Wages and benefits   91,836   189,669 


   194,399   377,244 
Excess of revenues over expenses  207,834 44,199 
Net assets, beginning of year   855,741   811,542 
Net assets, end of year $ 1,063,575 $ 855,741 


See accompanying notes   







SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
 


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 TO MAY 31, 2020 
(with figures for the year ended December 31, 2019) 


 May 31, Dec 31, 
 2020 2019 


Operating activities   


Excess of revenues over expenses $ 207,834 $ 44,199 
Items not involving an outlay of cash   


Amortization 
 


Net change in non-cash operating working capital 


  2,026 
209,860 


  4,672 
48,871 


balances (Note 13)   (8,291)   (104,041) 
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities   201,569   (55,170) 


Investing activities   
Purchase of property and equipment   (1,811)   (2,419) 


Cash used in investing activities   (1,811)   (2,419) 


Increase (decrease) in cash 199,758 (57,589) 
Cash position, beginning of year   87,430   145,019 
Cash position, end of year $ 287,188 $ 87,430 


See accompanying notes   







SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


MAY 31, 2020 


 


 


1. Purpose of the College 
The College has been organized to serve the public by ensuring safe, competent care from 
qualified physical therapists in the province of Saskatchewan. 


2. Change in fiscal year end 
The College has changed their fiscal year end date from December 31 to May 31. 
Accordingly, the current financial statements represent the transition period of five months 
from January 1 to May 31, 2020. This change in fiscal year end will make the fiscal year 
similiar to the operational year for which the membership fees received relate to. This change 
in fiscal year is also meant to separate the workload for the staff relating to accepting annual 
membership renewals and preparing the year end work for the auditor. The prior year figures 
are presented for the year ending December 31, 2019. 


3. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and include the following significant 
accounting policies: 


(a) Revenue recognition 
Membership fees and sundry income are recognized as revenue when received. Interest 
revenue is recognized as revenue for the period it relates to. 


(b) Capital assets 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided for on the 
straight-line basis at rates which are estimated to amortize the costs over the useful lives 
of the assets. The useful lives of the assets are estimated at the following annual rates: 


Furniture and equipment 10 years 
Computer equipment 3 years 
Database software 10 years 


(c) Financial instruments 
Measurement 
The College initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. 
The College subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at cost 
or amortized cost, except for investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an 
active market, which are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value of these financial 
instruments are recognized in net income. 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost on a straight-line basis include cash, 
temporary investments and accounts receivable. 
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost on a straight-line basis include the 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 
Impairment 
Financial assets measured at cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators of 
impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in net income. 


 







SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


MAY 31, 2020 


 


 


3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued...) 
Transaction costs 
The College's transaction costs related to financial instruments that will be subsequently 
measured at fair value are recognized in net income in the period incurred. The carrying 
amount of the financial instruments that will not be subsequently measured at fair value 
is adjusted for transaction costs directly attributable to the origination, issuance or 
assumption of these instruments. 


(d) Management estimates 
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting 
standards for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the current period. Significant estimates 
include those used when accounting for amortization. All estimates are reviewed 
periodically and adjustments are made to the statements of operations as appropriate in 
the year they become known. 


4. Income tax status 
The College is exempt from Canadian income tax as a not-for-profit organization. 


5. Temporary investments 


Temporary investments consist of the following. The RBC investment savings consists of 
three mutual funds, where cost is equal to market value. All GIC's are presented at cost, 
which is equal to market value. 


   2020    2019  
RBC Investment Savings $ 281,860 $ 280,472 
2.30%, Canadian Western Trust, maturing October 29,   


2020 72,706 72,706 
2.17%, Canadian Tire Bank, maturing March 10, 2021 33,333 33,333 
2.84%, Canadian Western Bank, maturing July 5, 2021 20,000 20,000 
2.10%, Homeequity Bank, maturing July 27, 2021 20,000 20,000 
2.98%, Canadian Western Bank, maturing July 4, 2022 20,000 20,000 
2.36%, General Bank of Canada, maturing July 27,   


2022 53,000 53,000 
2.23%, Home Trust Company, maturing July 29, 2022 87,902 87,902 
3.24%, Laurentian Bank, maturing July 27, 2023 79,648 79,648 
2.52%, National Bank of Canada, maturing April 17,   


2024   80,000   80,000 
 $ 748,449 $ 747,061 


 







SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


MAY 31, 2020 


 


 


6. Property and equipment  
2020 2019 


Accumulated Net Book Net Book 
  Cost  Amortization   Value   Value  


Furniture and 
equipment $ 9,687 5,537 4,150 $ 4,512 


Computer equipment  13,116  10,222   2,894   1,933 
Database software   19,530    6,673   12,857   13,671 


$ 42,333   22,432   19,901 $ 20,116 


7. Net assets invested in capital assets 
Net assets includes $19,901 (2019 - $20,116) relating to net assets invested in capital assets. 
The current year deficiency of revenues over expenses relating to capital assets consists of 
amortization in the amount of $2,026 (2019 - $4,672). Purchase of capital asset during the 
year amounts to $1,811. There were no disposals of capital assets during the current year. 


8. Alliance fees 
The alliance fees paid in the current year relate to the period January 1 to December 31, 
2020, therefore alliance fees expense is prorated to include five months of fees and seven 
months of fees are recorded as prepaid expenses. The prior year expense includes twelve 
months of expenses. 


9. Allocation of expenses 
Costs incurred by the College for legal fees of $11,508 (2019 - $10,950) and teleconference 
stipends of $NIL (2019 - $855) have been allocated to various committee expense accounts 
on a time incurred basis. 


10.Commitment 
The College is committed to the current property lease which commenced April, 2016, will 
require monthly payments of $948 for the first thirty months and $1,058 for the last thirty 
months plus occupancy costs estimated at $515 per month. The lease will expire March, 
2021 with two options to renew of three years each. The aggregate commitment over the 
remaining term of the lease of one year amounts to $15,729. 


11.Financial instruments 
The College is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments, without being 
exposed to concentrations of risk. The following analysis provides a measure of the College's 
risk exposure at the balance sheet date. 
(a) Liquidity risk 


Liquidity risk is the risk that the College will not be able to meet a demand for cash or 
fund its obligations as they come due. The College meets its liquidity requirements by 
monitoring forecasts of cash flows from operations and investments and holds 
investments that can readily be converted into cash. 


 







SASKATCHEWAN COLLEGE OF PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


MAY 31, 2020 


 


 


11. Financial instruments (continued...) 
(b) Credit risk 


Credit risk is the possibility that other parties may default on their financial obligations. 
At year-end, the maximum exposure of the College to credit risk in cash and investments 
was $1,035,637 (2019 - $834,491). The risk is minimized by ensuring these assets are 
invested in major financial institutions. 
The maximum exposure of credit risk in accounts receivable is $7,910 (2019 - $5,536). 
This credit risk is minimized by limiting who credit is extended to. The accounts 
receivable consists of mostly accrued interest receivable. 


(c) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The College manages its exposure to the 
interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on excess funds 
while maintaining the liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis. 
Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the 
College's operations. The primary objective of the College's investments is to ensure the 
security of principal amounts invested, provide a high degree of liquidity and achieve a 
satisfactory investment return. 


Changes in risk 
There have been no significant changes in the College's risk exposures from the prior year 
and no significant changes are expected for the subsequent year. 


12. Capital management 
The College's objective when managing capital is to enable the effective execution of its 
programs and provide support to its members. The objectives are considered in the budget 
process and in monitoring the actual revenue and expenses. 


13. Net change in non-cash working capital balances 
  2020    2019  


Decrease (increase) in current assets:  
Temporary investments $ (1,388) $ (94,006) 
Accounts receivable (2,374) (1,323) 
Prepaid expenses   (9,847)   (28) 


   (13,609)   (95,357) 


Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:   


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,818 (7,291) 
Government remittances payable - (1,893) 
Deferred revenue   (500)   500 


   5,318   (8,684) 
 $ (8,291) $ (104,041) 
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Briefing Note Administrative Bylaw Amendments  
 
The new Governance Policy Manual has now been approved by Council. However, there are a few items included in it that will 
require Administrative Bylaw Changes. Legislation committee is being asked to review these sections and recommend amendments to 
the required bylaws in order to align them with the new policy manual.  
 


1) Under 4.1 – SCPT Officer Positions  
• Council has changed the term of President to allow for it to be renewable once, this will require a change to: 


• Admin Bylaw 3 (3): “A president-elect is elected in each even calendar year to serve a one-year term in 
that office and to serve a two-year term in the following two years as president.” 


 
2) Under 4.1 – SCPT Officer Positions 


• Council has changed “President-Elect” to “Vice President” and has changed the term to 1 year, renewable. 
• This will require several Admin Bylaw changes as follows: 


• Admin Bylaws Table of Contents 8 – President- Elect to Vice President 
• Admin Bylaw 3 (1) For the purposes of clause 7(2)(a) of the Act, the number of members to be elected to the 


council consists of the president-elect and eight members-at-large. 
• Admin Bylaw 3 (3) A president-elect is elected in each even calendar year to serve a one-year term in that 


office and to serve a two-year term in the following two years as president. 
• Admin Bylaw 3(5) Except in the case of the president-elect, the term of office for the elected members of council 


is two years. 
• Admin Bylaw 6 (1) The officers of the college consist of the president, the president-elect, the secretary, the 


treasurer and the members-at-large elected to the council. 
• Admin Bylaw 8 President-elect  


• 8 The president-elect shall: (a) in the absence of the president, perform the duties of the president; and (b) 
perform any other duties that may be assigned by the council or delegated by the president. 


• Admin Bylaw 11 (2) In the absence of the president and president-elect, the council shall appoint a member-at-
large to perform the duties of the president. 


 
 
 
 







Current Bylaw Proposed Amendment 
Admin Bylaw 3 (3): “A president-elect is elected in each even 
calendar year to serve a one-year term in that office and to 
serve a two-year term in the following two years as president.” 


Remove completely 


Admin Bylaws Table of Contents 8 Change President-Elect to Vice President 
Admin Bylaw 3 (1) For the purposes of clause 7(2)(a) of the Act, 
the number of members to be elected to the council consists of the 
president-elect and eight members-at-large. 


Remove President – Elect; just 8 members at large 


Admin Bylaw 3 (3) A president-elect is elected in each even 
calendar year to serve a one-year term in that office and to serve 
a two-year term in the following two years as president. 


Remove 


Admin Bylaw 3(5) Except in the case of the president-elect, the 
term of office for the elected members of council is two years. 


Remove “Except in the case of president-elect” 


Admin Bylaw 6 (1) The officers of the college consist of the 
president, the president-elect, the secretary, the treasurer and the 
members-at-large elected to the council. 


Change president-elect to vice president 


Admin Bylaw 8 President-elect  
8 The president-elect shall: (a) in the absence of the president, 
perform the duties of the president; and (b) perform any other 
duties that may be assigned by the council or delegated by the 
president. 


Change president-elect to vice president 


Admin Bylaw 11 (2) In the absence of the president and 
president-elect, the council shall appoint a member-at-large to 
perform the duties of the president. 


Change president-elect to vice president 


 








Saskatchewan College of Physical Therapists 
The SCPT General Administrative Bylaws 


 


1 
 


SCPT General Administrative Bylaws 
Office Consolidation as of July 7, 2020 
NOTE: The official legal version of the administrative bylaws is the version that is approved by 
the membership at a meeting of the College. This consolidation incorporates amendments made 
to The SCPT General Administrative Bylaws that were approved by the membership at the 
College’s April 27, 2017 annual meeting and amended at the April 29, 2018 and June 13, 2020 
annual meetings, and is compiled for convenience of reference. Dates noted following some 
sections indicate the date of the meeting at which the provision was approved or amended. 
Provisions with no notes were approved at the 2012 annual meeting.   
 


Table of Contents 
  
1 Title 
2 Definitions 
 


COUNCIL 
3 Composition and term of office  
4 Meetings  
5 Public appointees 
 


OFFICERS 
6 Officers  
7 President 
8 President-electVice President 
9 Secretary 
10 Treasurer 
11 Members-at-large 
12 Removal of officers 
 


ELECTIONS TO COUNCIL 
13 Eligibility  
14 Nominations 
15 Voting 
16 Voting by electronic or other means 
 


 
 
 


 
MEETINGS OF THE COLLEGE 


17 Annual meeting 
18 Special meeting 
18.1 Electronic attendance 
19 Quorum 
20 Procedure at meetings 
 


FINANCIAL MATTERS 
21 Fiscal year 
22 Audit 
23 Banking 
24 Signing authority 
25 Remuneration and reimbursement 
26 Contributions, donations, scholarships and 
bursaries 
 


COMMITTEES 
27 Structure  
28 Standing committees 
29 Legislation committee 
30 Professional standards of practice committee 
31 Finance committee 
32 Registration committee 
33 Repealed 
34 Special committees 
35 Ad hoc committee 


 
Title 
1 These Bylaws may be referred to as The SCPT General Administrative Bylaws. 
 
Definitions 
2 In these Bylaws: 
 


(a) “Act” means The Physical Therapists Act, 1998; 
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(b) “polling day” means the last day of the annual meeting of the members of the 


college. 
 
 


COUNCIL 
 
Composition and term of office 
3(1) For the purposes of clause 7(2)(a) of the Act, the number of members to be elected to the 


council consists of the president-elect and eight members-at-large. 
 
(2) All council elections are held at the annual meeting of the college in accordance with 


sections 13 to 16. 
 
(3) A president-elect is elected in each even calendar year to serve a one-year term in that 


office and to serve a two-year term in the following two years as president.Repealed 
 
(4) Four members-at-large are elected in each year. 
 
(5) Except in the case of the president-elect, Tthe term of office for the elected members of 


council is two years. 
 
(6) The term of office for all elected members of council commences at the first business 


meeting of the council following their election, which must be held in accordance with 
subsection 4(2). 


 
Meetings 
4(1) Business meetings of the council must be held at least four times between annual meetings 


of the college. 
 
(2) The first business meeting of the council following an annual meeting of the college must 


occur within one month of the annual meeting at a time and place to be determined by the 
executive director. 


 
(3) The president may call a special meeting of the council at any time of his or her own 


initiative, and shall call a special meeting within 10 days of receipt by him or her of a 
written request for a special meeting signed by at least three members of the council, by 
sending a written notice to each member of the council at least two days prior to the date 
set for the special meeting stating the business to be considered at the special meeting. 


 
(4) No matters other than those specified in the notice of a special meeting may be brought 


before the meeting except by the unanimous vote of the members present. 
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(5) Quorum for any council meeting is a majority of the members of the council. 
 
Public appointees 
5 The persons appointed to the council as public appointees pursuant to section 8 of the Act 


shall: 
 


(a) represent the views of the public on matters before the council; 
 
(b) report to the council on public concerns; and 
 
(c) perform any other duties that may be assigned by the council. 


 
 


OFFICERS 
 


Officers 
6(1) The officers of the college consist of the president, the president-elect, the secretary, the 


treasurer and the members-at-large elected to the council. 
 
(2) The council shall elect a president, vice president, secretary and treasurer from the 


members-at-large elected to the council at the first business meeting of the council after the 
annual meeting of the college. 


 
President 
7(1) The president shall: 
 


(a) preside at all meetings of the college and of the council; 
 
(b) perform all acts and deeds pertaining to the position of president; and 
 
(c) exercise general control and supervision over the affairs of the council and the 


college. 
 
(2) The president is an ex officio, non-voting member of all committees, other than the 


professional conduct committee and the discipline committee, but is a voting member of 
any committees to which the president is specifically appointed by the council. 


 
President-electVice President 
8 The vice presidentpresident-elect shall: 
 


(a) in the absence of the president, perform the duties of the president; and 
 
(b) perform any other duties that may be assigned by the council or delegated by 
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the president. 
 
Secretary 
9 The secretary shall: 
 


(a) perform the duties and functions provided for by the Act and these bylaws to be 
performed by the secretary; and 
 
(b) perform any other duties that may be assigned by the council. 


 
Treasurer 
10 The treasurer shall: 
 


(a) perform the duties and functions provided for by the Act and these bylaws to 
be performed by the treasurer; and 


 
(b) perform any other duties that may be assigned by the council. 


 
Members-at-large 
11(1)  The members-at-large shall perform any duties that may be assigned by the council. 
 
(2) In the absence of the president and vice presidentpresident-elect, the council shall appoint a 


member-at-large to perform the duties of the president. 
 
Removal of officers 
12(1)  The members of the college or the council may, by a majority vote, remove an officer from 


the council if the officer: 
 


(a) consistently fails or refuses to perform duties assigned according to the Act, 
bylaws, and policies and procedures of the college; 


 
(b) is absent for more than three business meetings of the council between annual 


meetings; 
 
(c) is not acting in the best interests of the college; or 
 
(d) ceases to be a member. 


 
 


ELECTIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
Eligibility 
13 Any practising member of the college in good standing, other than a college employee, is 
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eligible to stand as a candidate for election to the council. 
 
Nominations 
14(1)  All nominations must be received in writing by the executive director at least 30 days 


before polling day and must be accompanied by a signed consent from the nominee. 
 
(2)   If there are insufficient nominations received 30 days before polling day to require a vote 


to be held, the executive director shall declare those nominated to be acclaimed to office 
and no vote need be conducted. 


 
Voting 
15(1) Each practising member of the college is entitled to one vote. 
 
(2) Voting is conducted by secret ballot. 
 
(3) Council shall prescribe the form of the ballot, which shall contain instructions to vote as 


set out in these bylaws, on which the names of all nominees are placed in the alphabetical 
order of their surnames. 


 
(4) The executive director shall, at least 20 days before polling day, or as soon as possible in 


the case of a member who is subsequently registered, mail or deliver to each member a 
ballot and a ballot envelope together with an envelope addressed to the college, on which 
the member shall verify their name and registration number. 


 
(5) The member shall: 
 


(a) vote for the required number of candidates to fill each vacancy, as indicated 
on the ballot, by marking an "X" opposite the name of the candidate of the 
member's choice; 


 
(b) place the completed ballot in the ballot envelope and seal the envelope; 
 
(c) place the ballot in the sealed ballot envelope inside the envelope addressed 


to the college and seal the envelope; 
 
(d) complete the information required to be provided on the face of the 


envelope addressed to the college in order to verify the member’s 
entitlement to vote; and 
 


(e) mail or deliver the ballot in the sealed envelope addressed to the college or deposit 
the ballot in the ballot box at the annual meeting before the time that is one hour 
after the commencement of the annual meeting. 
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(6) In order to be counted, ballots must reach the executive director by the time that is one 
hour after the commencement of the annual meeting. 


 
(7) The executive director shall appoint at least two scrutineers and any candidate for election 


is entitled to have a scrutineer present when the ballots are counted. 
 
(8) In the case of a tie vote for any office, the president shall cast the deciding vote. 


 
Voting by electronic or other means 
16 Notwithstanding section 15, the council may authorize the use of an electronic or on-line 


system of voting provided that the system is accessible to all practising members and 
provides voting security at least equivalent to that of a mail-in ballot system. 


 
 


MEETINGS OF THE COLLEGE 
 
Annual meeting 
17(1)  The annual meeting of the college shall be held in Saskatchewan at a specific time and 


place to be determined by the council. 
 
(2) Notice of the annual meeting shall be sent to the members of the college at the mailing 


address or email address appearing in the register at least 30 days prior to the date of the 
annual meeting. 


 
(3) The annual report of the college shall be mailed to members of the college at the mailing 


address or email address appearing in the register at least 14 days prior to the date of the 
annual meeting. 


 
Special meeting 
18(1)  A special meeting of the college shall be held in Saskatchewan at a specific time and place 


to be determined by the council in accordance with subsection 6(4) of the Act. 
(2) Notice of a special meeting shall be sent to the members of the college at the mailing 


address or email address appearing in the register at least 14 days prior to the date of the 
special meeting. 


 
 
Electronic attendance 
18.1(1) The college may provide for the attendance of its members at meetings electronically in 


accordance with the procedures set by the council. 
 
(2)  A member who, through the electronic means provided by the college, votes at a 


meeting or establishes a communications link to a meeting is deemed to be present at 
that meeting. 
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June 13, 2020 
 


Quorum 
19 Quorum for any annual or special meeting of the college is the number of practising members of the 


college who are present at the meeting. 
 
Procedure at meetings 
20(1)  Unless otherwise provided, the procedure at all meetings of the college and of the council 


shall be governed by the procedures contained in Appendix A and, in cases not provided 
for, by the rules set out in the most current edition of Call to Order, by Herb Perry and 
Susan Perry. 


 
(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1), the procedures for meetings may be amended or 


suspended at any meeting of the college, with respect to that meeting, by majority vote of 
the members present at the meeting. 


 
 


FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 
Fiscal Year 
21   The fiscal year of the college is June 1 to May 31 of the following year.  


June 13, 2020 
 
Audit 
22(1)  The annual meeting of the college shall appoint a member of the Institute of Chartered 


Professional Accountants of Saskatchewan to be the auditor of the college. 
 
(2)  The auditor shall annually, or more frequently as required by the council, audit the 


books and accounts of the college and shall, annually after the completion of the fiscal 
year, furnish a statement of the college's financial affairs, which shall be presented at the 
annual meeting of the college. 


         April 29, 2018 
 
Banking 
23 The council shall keep bank accounts in a chartered bank or credit union and shall deposit 


in such bank accounts all monies received for and on account of the college. 
 
Signing authority 
24(1)  Signing officers of the college are the president, the treasurer, at least one other officer 


appointed annually by the council, and the Executive Director. 
 
(2) No less than two signing officers of the college shall sign cheques, contracts, security 


instruments, and other legal documents affecting the   college. 
 







Saskatchewan College of Physical Therapists 
The SCPT General Administrative Bylaws 


 


8 
 


         April 29, 2018 
 
Remuneration and reimbursement 
25(1)  Officers of the council are entitled to any remuneration for their services rendered to the 


college as council members and to reimbursement for expenses as determined by the 
council. 


 
(2) The council may establish remuneration payable to committee members, college members, 


and non-members representing the college in an official capacity. 
 
(3) Committee members and college representatives are entitled to be reimbursed for 


reasonable expenses incurred in the course of their duties. 
 
Contributions, donations, scholarships and bursaries 
26(1)  Council may receive and accept contributions, donations and bequests to the college and 


shall utilize those funds as it sees fit for the purposes of the college subject to any 
conditions attached to the contribution, donation or bequest. 


 
(2) Council may create any scholarships or bursary programs on any terms and conditions that 


it considers, but no scholarship or bursary program may be created from the general 
operating revenues of the college without the prior approval of the membership at an 
annual meeting. 


 
(3) Council may contribute to established scholarships or bursary programs as it considers 


appropriate. 
 
 


COMMITTEES 
 
Structure 
27(1) The council shall establish for all committees: 
 


(a) terms of reference; 
 
(b) membership and terms of appointment; 
 
(c) chair; 
 
(d) quorum requirement; and 
 
(e) budget allocation. 


 
(2) Each committee shall: 







Saskatchewan College of Physical Therapists 
The SCPT General Administrative Bylaws 


 


9 
 


 
(a) perform its duties subject to the direction of council; 
 
(b) meet as frequently as required to fulfil its terms of reference;  
 
(c) maintain minutes of all meetings; and 
 
(d) report to the council on the business of each meeting of the committee. 


 
(3) Members of a committee may be members of the college, public appointees, or public 


representatives. 
 
(4) The council shall make all committee appointments. 
 
(5) Unless the chairperson is elected or named in the bylaws, the council shall appoint the 


chairperson. 
 
Standing committees 
28(1) Unless otherwise specified, all standing committee appointments are for a term of two 


years and may be renewed or extended at the discretion of the committee chair and 
council. 


 
(2) All members of committees are voting members, unless otherwise specified. 
 
(3) Quorum for a committee is a majority. 
 
(4) All committees shall appoint a recording secretary. 
 
(5) The standing committees of the college are: 
 


(a) the legislation committee; 
 
(b) the professional standards of practice committee; 
 
(c) the finance committee; and 
 
(d) the registration committee. 


 
 


Legislation committee 
29(1)  The membership of the legislation committee consists of a minimum of three persons. 
 
(2) The duties of the committee are: 
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(a) to monitor federal, provincial and municipal legislation affecting physical 


therapists and the physical therapy profession, and to make recommendations to the 
council for college action where required; 


 
(b) to review the Act and bylaws of the college and to make recommendations to 


the council regarding necessary changes; 
 
(c) upon the direction of council, to draft changes to the Act and bylaws; and 
 
(d) to review policies and procedures to ensure consistency with the Act and 


bylaws. 
 
Professional standards of practice committee 
30(1)  The membership of the professional standards of practice committee consists of a 


minimum of three persons, at least one of whom is a public representative. 
 
(2) The duties of the committee are to make recommendations to council with respect to: 
 


(a) physical therapy practice issues; 
 
(b) standards, ethics and competencies for physical therapists; 
 
(c) guidelines for physical therapy practice; and 
 
(d) continuing education. 


 
Finance committee 
31(1)  The membership of the finance committee consists of a minimum of three persons, one 


of whom is the treasurer of the college who shall act as chair. 
 
(2) The duties of the committee are to make recommendations to council with respect to: 
 


(a) the investment of college monies; 
 
(b) the proposed annual budget for the upcoming fiscal year; 


 
(c) long term financial plans and strategies; 
 
(d) the maintenance and amount of a contingency fund for the college; and 
 
(e) any other matters of financial management. 
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Registration committee 
32(1) The membership of the registration committee consists of a minimum of three persons, one 


of whom shall act as chair. 
 
(2) The duties of the committee are: 
 


(a) to make written recommendations to the Registrar with respect to applications 
from registrants who apply for removal or modification of any term, condition 
or limitation imposed on their certificate of registration or licence and 
applications referred to it by the Registrar when the Registrar: 


 
(i) has doubts, on reasonable grounds, about whether the applicant 


fulfills the registration requirements; 
 
(ii) is of the opinion that terms, conditions or limitations should be 


imposed on a licence or registration of the applicant and the 
applicant does not consent to the imposition; or 


 
(iii) proposes to refuse the application. 


 
(b) to maintain an understanding of the current external environment related to 


entry to practice and identify emerging key issues for council awareness, debate 
and direction; and 


 
(c) to prepare and recommend policies to council relating to registration. 


 
 
Nomination committee 
33 Repealed. 
 
Special committees 
34 The council may appoint special committees at any time to carry out the objectives of the 


college and may dissolve the committees by a resolution of the council. 
 
Ad hoc committees 
35(1)  The council may appoint ad hoc committees for a specific purpose on precise terms of 


reference that state that the committee shall cease to function upon completion of the 
specific task. 


 
(2) The council shall provide each ad hoc committee with a written statement of its goals and 


objectives and a projected timetable for achieving them and the submission of written 
reports, including a final report. 
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(3) The chairperson of each ad hoc committee shall: 
 


(a) provide council with a suggested list of committee members for appointment; 
 
(b) submit written progress reports to the council at predetermined intervals or 


upon request and a final report; and 
 
(c) attend council meetings when requested by council to present or clarify written 


reports. 
 
 


APPENDIX A 
Procedures at Meetings 


(Section 20) 
 
Parliamentary Authority 
Call to Order, by Herb Perry and Susan Perry shall govern the organization in all procedural 
matters not otherwise covered by The Physical Therapists Act, 1998, the Bylaws, or these Rules 
and Procedures. 
 
Voting Eligibility 
Each practising member of the Saskatchewan College of Physical Therapists is entitled to one vote 
at the annual meeting. Only those voting members present at the annual meeting and in 
possession of the designated “voting” identification card are eligible to vote during the sessions of 
the annual meeting. 
 
Scrutineers 
Scrutineers shall be appointed at the commencement of the annual meeting. 
 
Rules of Debate 
Limitation of Debate 
The Chair shall exercise the responsibility of the Chair to limit the debate. 
 
Consideration of any item of business, whether introduced by motion or resolution shall be 
limited to 30 minutes. 
 
The chairperson shall warn the assembly that the question will be called within the next five 
minutes. 
 
Debate may be extended with permission of the assembly. 
 
Speakers 
Speakers shall use the microphones, state their name, place of residence and address the chair. 
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The chairperson shall call speakers in the order in which they stand behind the microphones. 
 
Motions 
Motions must be made by a member and seconded by a member. 
 


• Each person except the mover of a motion may speak once to each motion. The mover of 
a motion may speak twice: in making the motion, the mover shall identify the seconder of the 
motion, then continue to speak to the rationale and/or reasons for proposing this motion. 
 
• a second time to close debate. 
 
• at the request and on the invitation of the chairperson, the mover may correct 
misconceptions or offer explanation. This will not be considered speaking for the second 
time or closing debate. 


 
The seconder shall speak immediately following the mover in order to formally second the 
motion and speak in support of it. 
 
Amendments 
Amendments must be introduced by motion, in accordance with the rules for motions set out 
above, and be voted on before the main motion is put to a vote. 
 
The mover of an amendment may speak only at the time of proposing the amendment. 
 
Each person who speaks to an amendment shall be limited to a maximum of two minutes. No 
more that two amendments may be on the floor at the same time. 
 
Resolutions and Motions 
Resolutions and motions shall be decided by the majority (50% + 1) of votes cast, ignoring 
abstentions. Because abstentions are not “votes” they are not counted in the total votes cast. 
Therefore, the practical effect of an abstention is an indication of support for the prevailing side on 
the vote. While it is the duty of members who have an opinion on the question to express it by 
their vote, persons cannot be compelled to vote. 
 
Abstentions shall not be counted or recorded but, in a conflict of interest situation, the name of 
the member who abstained shall be recorded at the member’s request. 
 
Voting Procedure 
The meeting room will be divided into at least three voting sections. One scrutineer shall be 
assigned to count the votes in each of the voting sections. 
 
The assembly shall vote by show of hands, using the voter identification card. 
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In a situation where the chairperson cannot clearly determine a majority, the chairperson shall call 
for the scrutineers to count and request the assembly to vote again. 
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BRIEFING NOTE 


TOPIC: Fee Bylaws Amendments 


 


BACKGROUND: 


6-Month License Options 


SCPT often gets requests for shorter license periods for a variety of reasons – maternity leaves, 
retirements, planned moves to other jurisdictions etc. We would like to have an option for those 
members who would prefer a shorter license term.  


The SCPT has decided to implement 6 month license options from April – September and from October – 
March. The decision to license for a 6-month term would need to occur at registration or 
renewal/change of status; with there not being a “refund” option for those who initially registered for 
the full year and then changed their plans later on.   
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Title 
1 These Bylaws may be referred to as The SCPT Fee Bylaws, 2020 (No. 2). 
 
Registration application  
2 The non-refundable processing fee payable for an initial application for registration as a  


practising member is $75.00. 
 
Non-practising 
3 The annual fee for a non-practising membership is $125.00. 
 
Change of status 
4 The fee to change status from non-practising to practising and for the relevant licence to 


practice in the year in which the change in status occurs is the amount of the licence fee 
described in subsection 7(1), less the non-practising fee described in section 3. 


 
Temporary licence 
5 The fee for a temporary licence as a registrant in or instructor of a course is $50.00 per 


course. 
 
Licence monitoring fee 
6(1) The following persons shall pay a licence monitoring fee of $75.00: 
 


(a) each new applicant for a restricted practising licence; 
 


(b) each applicant for a full practising licence who has insufficient hours as provided 
for in subsection 12(2) of The SCPT Regulatory Bylaws; 


 
(c) each applicant for a licence who is subject to limitations or conditions attached to 


the licence as a result of an order of the discipline committee or a consensual resolution 
agreement with the professional conduct committee. 
 


Practising licences 
7(1) The annual fee for licensure as a full practising, restricted practising, or academic 


practising member is $500.00. 
 


(2)  The annual fee for licensure as an extended access member is $125.00.  
 
(3)  The fee for licensure in the first year of registration is reduced by 50% in the case of 


a person who applies on or after October 1 in any year. 
 


(4)  The fee for a member who wishes to renew their licence only for the period from April 
1 to September 30 in any year is 50% of the fee prescribed in subsection (1) plus a 
$50.00 administrative fee. 


 
(5)  All renewal fees are payable before March 1. 
 


(6)  A person who pays the required licence renewal fee on or after March 1 but prior to March 
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31 shall, in addition, pay a late fee of $100, plus $10 per day for each day late. 
 
(7)  A person who fails to pay the required licence renewal fees by March 31 ceases to be a 


licensed practising member as of that date. 
 
(8)  A person who fails to pay the required licence renewal fee by March 31 may subsequently 


apply to be re-licensed on payment of: 
 


(a) the applicable licence renewal fee; 
 


(b) the penalty described in subsection (7); and 
 


(c) an additional re-licensing fee of $100. 
 
Remission of fees 
8  The Council may, for cause, remit the whole or any portion of any fee or late payment 


penalty. 
 
Repeal 
9  The SCPT Fee Bylaws, 2016 are repealed. 
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Title 
1 These Bylaws may be referred to as The SCPT Regulatory Bylaws Amendments, 2016. 


 
Definitions 
2 In these Bylaws: 


 
(a) “Act” means The Physical Therapists Act, 1998; 


 
(b) “client” means a person for whom a physical therapist acts within a therapeutic 


relationship, the purpose of which is the treatment of a physical ailment; 
 


(c) “recognized competency examination” means the physical therapy competency 
examination administered by the Canadian Alliance of Physiotherapy Regulators or an 
examination that is recognized by the council as equivalent of that examination; 


 
(d) “recognized educational program” means a physical therapy education program that is 


recognized by the council pursuant to clause 19(1)(c) of the Act; 
 


(e) “specialized physical therapy procedure” includes, acupuncture, dry needling, spinal 
manipulation and invasive techniques for the treatment of urogenital or rectal 
dysfunction. 


 
 


MEMBERSHIP 
 


Categories of membership 
3 Membership in the college consists of the following categories: 


 
(a) practising membership; 


(a.1) extended access membership 
 


(b) restricted practising membership; 


(c) academic practising membership; 


(d) non-practising membership; 


(e) temporary practising membership; and 


(f) honorary membership 
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Practising membership 
4(1) Practising membership is available to an individual who meets the requirements of subsection 19(1) or 
(1.1) of the Act and submits a completed application in the form provided by the college. 


 
(2) Where an applicant for membership meets the requirements of subsection 19(1) of the 


Act and is registered as a physical therapist in another country, the applicant must 
demonstrate that he or she is a member in good standing and is fluent in English. 


 
(3) Subject to obtaining a practising licence, practising membership entitles a member to: 


 
(a) use the title “Physiotherapist” or “Physical Therapist” or any other word, title or 


designation, whether or not abbreviated, to indicate that the individual is practising as a 
member of the college; 


 
(b) vote and hold office in the college; 


 
(c) speak and vote at the annual and special meetings of the college; 


 
(d) serve as a representative of the college when appointed to do so; 


 
(e) receive a copy of college documents appropriate for distribution; and 


 
(f) receive the publications of the college 


 
Extended Access membership 
4.1 (1) Extended Access membership is available to an individual who meets the requirements of subsection 
19 (1.1) of the Act and submits a completed application in the form provided by the college. 


 
(2) The applicant must demonstrate that he or she is fluent in English. 


 
(3) Subject to obtaining an extended access licence, extended access membership entitles a member to: 


 
(a) use the title “Physiotherapist” or “Physical Therapist” or any other word, title or designation, 
whether or not abbreviated, to indicate that the individual is practising with an extended access 
membership as a member of the college; 


 
(b) speak but not vote at the annual and special meetings of the college; 


 
(c) receive a copy of college documents appropriate for distribution; and 


 
(d) receive the publications of the college 


Restricted practising membership 
5(1) Subject to subsection (1.1), restricted practising membership in the college is available to an 
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individual who:  
  


(a) meets the requirements of clauses 19(1)(a), (b), and (c) of the Act;  
  
(b) has successfully completed the written component of a recognized competency examination; 
and  
  
(c) submits a completed application in the form provided by the college 


 
(1.1) A restricted practising membership is intended as a transitional status to provide a person with 
the ability to be a member of the college while obtaining all necessary qualifications for full practising 
membership and expires two years from the date on which the member successfully completed the 
written component of a recognized competency examination. 
 
(1.2) Notwithstanding subsection (1.1), where there are extenuating circumstances, the executive 
director may extend the two-year period described in that subsection. 


 
(2) Subject to obtaining a practising licence, restricted practising membership entitles a member to: 


 
(a) use the title “Physiotherapist” or “Physical Therapist” or any other word, title or 


designation, whether or not abbreviated, to indicate that the individual is practising as a 
restricted practising member of the college; 


 
(b) speak and vote at the annual and special meetings of the college; 


 
(c) serve as a representative of the college when appointed to do so; 


 
(d) receive a copy of college documents appropriate for distribution; and 


 
(e) receive the publications of the college 


 
Academic practising membership 


6(1) Academic practising membership in the college is available to an individual who: 


 
(a) meets the requirements of clauses 19(1)(a), (b), and (c) of the Act; 


 
(b) has received an appointment to the academic staff of a university in Saskatchewan in a 


program described in clause 19(1)(c) of the Act; and 
 


(c) submits a completed application in the form provided by the college 
 


(2) Subject to obtaining a practising licence, academic practising membership entitles a member to: 
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(a) use the title “Physiotherapist” or “Physical Therapist” or any other word, title or 
designation, whether or not abbreviated, to indicate that the individual is practising as an 
academic member of the college; 


 
(b) speak and vote at the annual and special meetings of the college; 
 
(c)  serve as a representative of the college when appointed to do so; 


 
(d) receive a copy of college documents appropriate for distribution; and 


 
(e) receive the publications of the college 


 
Non-practising membership 


7(1) Non-practising membership in the college is available to an individual who is eligible for 
registration as a practising member but is not currently practising physical therapy in Saskatchewan, and 
who submits a completed application in the form provided by the college. 


 
(2) Non-practising membership entitles a member to: 


 
(a) speak and vote at the annual and special meetings of the college; 


 
(b) serve as a representative of the college when appointed to do so; 


 
(c) receive a copy of college documents appropriate for distribution; and 


 
(d) receive the publications of the college 


 
Temporary practising membership 
8(1) Temporary practising membership in the college is available to an individual who: 


 
(a) wishes to be registered for a specific period of time in order to attend or instruct as a physical 


therapist at a continuing education course or event; 
 


(b) meets the requirements of subsection 19(2) of the Act; and 
 


(c) submits a completed application in the form provided by the college. 
 


(2) Subject to obtaining a practising licence, temporary practising membership entitles a member to 
use the title “Physiotherapist” or “Physical Therapist” or any other word, title or designation, 
whether or not abbreviated, to indicate that the individual is practising as a temporary practising 
member of the college. 
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Honorary membership 


9(1) Honorary membership in the college is granted by resolution of the council in recognition of 
distinguished service to the profession to an individual who: 


 
(a) is a former practising member of the college who is retired from the practice of physical 


therapy; or 
 


(b) is not a physical therapist or is a physical therapist registered outside Saskatchewan. 
 


(2) Honorary membership entitles a member to: 
 


(a) speak but not vote at the annual and special meetings of the college; 
 


(b) receive a copy of college documents appropriate for distribution; and 
 
(c) receive the publications of the college. 


 
 


LICENSURE 
 


Licence year 


10 The licence year of the college is the period commencing on April 1 in one year and ending on 
March 31 in the next following year. 


 
Licence required 
11 Every practising member shall obtain a licence in each licence year. 


 
Insurance and criminal record check required 
12 Every applicant for a practicing licence of any kind shall:  


(a) maintain professional liability insurance that:  
            (i) is independent of any insurance that may be available through an employer;  
           (ii) provides coverage in an amount not less than $5,000,000 on any one client of $5,000,000 


for the policy year with no deductible; and  
(b) provide a criminal record check. 


 
 


Full practising licence 


13(1) A practising member who submits a completed application in the form provided by the college is 
eligible to obtain a full practising licence, if the member: 


 
(a) has completed 1200 practice hours of physical therapy practice anywhere in the world 
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within the five-year period immediately preceding the date of the licence application; 
 


(b) has successfully completed a recognized educational program within the four-year period 
immediately preceding the date of the licence application; or 


 
(c) has successfully completed a recognized competency examination within the four- year period 


immediately preceding the date of the licence application. 
 


(2) A practising member who has not completed 1200 practice hours as described in clause (1)(a) is 
eligible to obtain a full practising licence but must: 


(a) successfully complete a physical therapy bridging program recognized by the council; or 
(b) satisfactorily complete a period of supervised practice:  


(i) under the direction of a member with a full practising licence who is approved by 
the council  
(ii) in a physical therapy facility or facilities approved by the council; and  
(iii) for the total additional number of hours that would be required to be obtained to 
be eligible for full practising licensure in the current licence year and the next licence 
year; and  
(iv) in accordance with a supervision agreement and a supervision plan approved by 
council, which plan is developed for the member by the member’s supervisor and 
includes provisions for monitoring the member’s practice, for personal intervention, 
and for any other matters that the member’s supervisor or council considers 
necessary.” 


 
(3) Subsections (1) and (2) do not apply to an application for an initial licence from an applicant who 


becomes a member in accordance with subsection 19(1.1) of the Act. 
 


Extended Access Licence 
13.1(1) An extended access member who submits a completed application in the form provided by the 
college is eligible to obtain an extended access licence. 


 
(2) A member who holds an extended access licence may only provide physical therapy services, using 
information and communication technologies or in person, to patients located in Saskatchewan: 


 
(a) for the purpose of continuing to provide patient care to patients whose physiotherapy began in 
the primary jurisdiction and who would benefit from continued and time-limited service in the 
secondary jurisdiction; or 


 
(b) where services are not otherwise available in the secondary jurisdiction and the patient would 
benefit from such services. 


 
 


(3) For the purposes of this section: 
 


(a) “primary jurisdiction” means the other Canadian jurisdiction in which the member is currently 
registered and in which the majority of their practice is physically situated; 
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(b) “secondary jurisdiction” means Saskatchewan. 


 
Restricted practising licence 


14(1) A restricted practising member who submits a completed application in the form provided by the 
college is eligible to obtain a restricted practising licence. 


 
(2) A member who holds a restricted practising licence may only practise: 


 
(a) under the direction of a member with a full practising licence who is approved by the council; 


 
(b) in a physical therapy facility or facilities approved by the council; and 


 
(c) in accordance with a supervision agreement and a supervision plan approved by council, 


which plan is developed for the member by the member’s supervisor and includes provisions 
for monitoring the member’s practice, for personal intervention, and for any other matters 
that the member’s supervisor or council considers necessary. 


 
Academic practising licence 


15 (1) An academic practising member who submits a completed application in the form provided by 
the college is eligible to obtain an academic practising licence. 


 
(2) An academic practising licence ceases to be valid if the member ceases to hold an academic 
appointment described in clause 6(1)(b). 


 
(3) A member who holds an academic practising licence may practise only in the department of the 
university in which he or she holds an academic appointment and only to the extent required by the 
teaching, research and service requirements of that appointment. 


 
Temporary practising licence 


16(1) A temporary practising member is eligible to obtain a temporary practising licence for the period 
commencing on the first day of the event or continuing education course in Saskatchewan for which 
they have obtained temporary registration until midnight on the last day of the event or continuing 
education course. 


 
(2) Physical therapists who are accompanying an athlete or team from another country, province or 
territory and who will provide physical therapy only to that athlete or team do not require a licence. 


 
 


PHYSICAL THERAPY PROCEDURES 
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Basic procedures 
17 Basic physical therapy procedures are those that may be performed through successful completion of 
educational programs necessary for membership in the college. 


 
Specialized procedures 


18(1) No member shall perform a specialized physical therapy procedure unless he or she has 
completed an educational program described in this section and recognized by the council. 


 
(2) To be recognized by the council, a course in acupuncture must meet the following criteria: 


 
1. Curriculum 


 
(a) minimum of 90 hours of instruction including both theoretical and practical 


components; and 
 


(b) course content must include, but is not limited to: theoretical basis of acupuncture, safety, 
infection control, indications, contraindications, precautions, point location and relevant 
anatomy, needling technique; 


 


2. Examination 
 


(a) a formal written and practical examination must be utilized to determine level of 
competency; 


 
3. Principal Instructor and External Examiner 


 
(a) must hold an AFCI, University of Alberta or equivalent certification in acupuncture; 


 
(b) must have a minimum of five years’ experience following certification; and 


 
(c) must have previous experience participating in a course, for example as an instructor, lab 


demonstrator or teaching assistant. 
 
 
 
 
 


(3) To be recognized by the council, a course in dry needling must meet the following criteria: 
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1. Curriculum 
 


(a) minimum of 90 hours of instruction including both theoretical and practical 
components; and 


 
(b) course content must include, but is not limited to: theoretical basis of dry needling, 


safety, infection control, indications, contraindications, precautions, point location and 
relevant anatomy, needling technique; 


 
2. Examination 


 
(a) formal written and practical examination must be utilized to determine level of 


competency; 
 


3. Principal Instructor 
 


(a) must hold an AFCI, University of Alberta or equivalent certification in dry 
needling; 
 


(b) must have a minimum of five years’ experience following certification; 
and 


 
(c) must have previous experience participating in a course, for example as an 


instructor, lab demonstrator or teaching assistant. 


(4) For the purposes of subsection (2) and (3), the number of hours of instruction in a course includes 
the hours required in any pre-requisite courses. 


 
(5) Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, a member who completed a course in dry 


needling that was recognized by the council at the time it was completed, may continue to perform 
those specialized physical therapy procedures within the limits of the member’s education and 
training. 


 
(6) To be recognized by the council, a course in spinal manipulation must: 


 
(a) be included in a recognized educational program: 


 
(b) be provided by a member organization and meet the standards of the International 


Federation of Orthopedic Manipulative Physical Therapists; or 
 
(c) provide education to the same level as a course described in clause (a) or (b). 


 
(7) To be recognized by the council, a course in the treatment of urogenital and rectal dysfunction with 
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invasive techniques must include a practical component, an evaluation of the participant’s knowledge 
and skill, and certification indicating successful completion of the course. 


 
 


STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
 


General standards 
19(1) No member shall: 


 


(a) abuse a client, whether physically, sexually, verbally, psychologically or in any other manner; 
 


(b) knowingly endanger the safety of a client; 
 


(c) engage in the practice of physical therapy while impaired by alcohol or drugs; 
 


(d) influence a client to change the client’s last will and testament; 
 


(e) wrongfully abandon a client; 
 


(f) misappropriate property belonging to a client, employer or fellow employee; 
 


(g) disclose confidential information about a client except as required or permitted by law; 
 


(h) falsify or fail to maintain a client record; 


 
(i) fail to inform an employer of the physical therapist’s inability to accept specific 


responsibility in areas where special training is required or where the physical 
therapist does not feel competent to function without supervision; 


 
(j) fail to report the incompetence or misconduct of a member or colleague; 


 
(k) fail to comply with established standards of practice; 


 
(l) fail without reasonable cause to respond to inquiries from the college regarding 


alleged professional misconduct or professional incompetence; 
 


(m) conspire to participate in any act of professional misconduct; 
 


(n) counsel a person to participate in any act of professional misconduct; 
 


(o) obtain registration by misrepresentation or fraud. 
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(2) For the purposes of clause (1)(a), “sexual abuse” includes: 
 


(a) sexual intercourse or any other form of sexual activity between a client and a 
member; 


 
(b) touching of a sexual nature between a client and the member including: 


 
(i) touching or massaging breasts or pelvic area, or any sexualized body part for any 
purpose other than that required for therapeutic evaluation or treatment; 


 
(ii) kissing of a sexual nature. 


 
(c) behaviour or remarks of a sexual nature between a client and member including: 


 
(i) verbal or written comments, inappropriate procedures, gestures or expressions 
that are seductive or sexually demeaning to the client; 


 
(ii) deliberately watching a client dress or undress, except for the purpose of 
assessment where the client has provided specific consent; 


 
(iii) failure to explain to the client the relevance of a procedure involving the breast or 
pelvic area; 


 


(iv) failure to receive consent for a procedure involving the breast or pelvic area; 
 


(v) subjecting a client to an examination of the breast or pelvic area in the presence of 
students or others without obtaining specific consent; 


 
(vi) questioning the client regarding the client’s sexual performance, history, or 


orientation unless relevant to the client’s assessment or treatment; 
 


(vii) discussion of a client’s sexual performance, history or orientation unless 
clinically relevant. 


 
 


Code of ethics 
20 The Saskatchewan College of Physical therapists adopts, and all registrants shall comply with the Code 
of Ethical Conduct as approved by the Registrars Committee of The Canadian Alliance of Physiotherapy 
Regulators in May 2016 and as amended from time to time. 
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Concurrent treatment 
21 No member shall provide physical therapy treatment to a client where: 


 
(a) the client is receiving treatment from another health care provider 


who has a dissimilar or conflicting treatment philosophy, approach 
or client care objectives; 


 
(b) the other health care provider treating the client has not 


been notified; or 


(c) the physical therapy services provided constitute duplication. 
 


Alternative therapies 


22(1) Members who engage in the practice of physical therapy and who also provide other services to 
clients shall ensure that they do not hold themselves out as a physical therapist when providing those 
other services or refer to the provision of those other services as physical therapy treatment. 


 
(2) A member shall ensure that clients and third-party payers, if involved, are fully informed of 
which service provided to them is a physical therapy service and which is not, and shall keep clear and 
separate records, including billings, of physical therapy services and alternative therapy services 
provided. 


(3) For the purposes of this section, “practice of physical therapy” means the use by a physical 
therapist of their specific knowledge, skills and professional judgment to improve individuals’ 
functional independence and physical performance, manage physical impairments, disabilities and 
handicaps, and promote health and fitness. 


 
Multi-disciplinary practices 
23 Where a member is providing physical therapy services in a multi- 


disciplinary setting, the member shall ensure that: 
 


(a) the client is informed of the differences in the roles of the physical therapist and that of other 
health care providers and of the client’s right to refuse any or all parts of an assessment or 
treatment regardless of who is providing it; and 


 
(b) specific entries are kept of physical therapy services provided. 


 
Assignment of tasks to support workers 


24(1) A member is responsible for assessing the knowledge, training, experience and ability of a 
support worker and shall only assign tasks to the support worker that the support worker has the 
knowledge, training, experience and ability to perform. 
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(2) A member shall not assign any of the following tasks to a support worker: 


 
(a) initial review, assessment or reassessment of clients; 


 
(b) interpretation of referral diagnosis or prognosis; 


 
(c) interpretation of assessment findings, treatment procedures and goals or treatment; 


 
(d) interpretation of subsequent assessment findings, treatment procedures and goals of 


treatment; 
 


(e) planning, initiation and modifying to advance a treatment program; 
 


(f) any tasks or procedures that put the client at a high risk or require continuous clinical 
judgment during their use; 


 
(g) discharge planning; 


 
(h) the determination of caseload management; 


 
(i) delivery of client education unless using approved pre-set packages/handouts of 


educational material. 
 


(3) A member shall only assign the task of laser or ultrasound treatment to a support worker when: 


 
(a) the support worker has received formal instruction and hands-on training in the 


use of laser and ultrasound that meets the requirements of The Radiation 
Health and Safety Regulations, 2005; 


 
(b) the member has ensured that the support worker demonstrates competency 


and safety in the application of the tasks assigned; 
 


(c) and the member has determined the dosage and adequately evaluated the 
client’s response to treatment. 


 
(4) A member shall adequately and appropriately supervise a support worker in the support 
worker’s performance of assigned tasks. 


 
Performance of tasks by certain unregulated workers 


25 A member who owns a facility providing physical therapy services shall ensure that a client who is 
known or suspected to have an acute or chronic disease process or injury is screened by a physical therapist 
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to determine that the client can safely proceed with a specific exercise program or other treatment 
prior to seeing an unregulated health care provider who is employed by the member in the facility. 


 
Use of instruments or devices 


26 No member shall use any instrument or device in the provision of physical therapy services 
unless: 


 
(a) the instrument or device is appropriately maintained and calibrated; 


 


(b) the member has successfully completed any necessary training to become familiar with the 
use of the instrument or device and its clinical application; and 


 
(c) the client is informed of the limitations of the results and the steps to be taken based on the 


results. 
 


Advertising 
27(1) No member shall offer to guarantee a cure either verbally or in writing or by advertising or 
otherwise.  
 
(2) No member shall engage in any advertising, promotion, or other marketing activities that:  


(a) are inaccurate or capable of misleading the public either directly or indirectly;  
 
(b) misrepresents facts;  
 
(c) compares either directly, indirectly or by innuendo, the member's services or ability with that 
of any other practitioner or clinic, or promise or offer more effective service or better results than 
those available elsewhere;  
 
(d) deprecates another member or clinic as to service, ability or fees;  
 
(e) create an unjustified expectation about the results the member can achieve;  
 
(f) are made under any false or misleading guise, or takes advantage, either physically, 
emotionally, or financially of any client, or uses coercion, duress, or harassment;  
 
(g) are incompatible with the best interests of the public or members, or tends to harm the 
standing of the physical therapy profession generally;  
 
(h) contain any testimonial or disclose the names of clients;  
(i) Endorses any product for financial gain. 


 
GENERAL 
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Demanding college meetings 
28 For the purposes of clause 6(2)(b) of the Act, the number of members required to demand a 
special meeting of the college is the number equal to 10% of the practising members. 


 
Conflict of interest 


29(1) A conflict of interest exists whenever a member has a vested interest in the outcome of a 
decision or proceeding involving the college, and includes any of the following situations: 


 
(a) where the member is involved in negotiating wages and/or employment contracts, or 
completing performance appraisals for college staff who may be related to that member; 


 
(b) where the member is involved in determining or reviewing credentials and registration or 
licensing eligibility for an applicant or another member who may be related to that member; 


 
(c) where the member is involved in the investigation or discipline hearing process affecting 
another member who may be related to that member; 


(d) where the member or family member might personally or financially benefit from 
decisions or information gained from involvement on council or a college committee. 


 
(2) A member of the college serving in an official capacity as a councilmember, committee member 
or representative of the college shall declare a conflict of interest where one exists. 


 
(3) Where a conflict of interest exists but is not declared as required by subsection (2), any other 


member of council or a committee who is aware of the conflict may declare it. 
 


(4) Any dispute that arises about the existence of a conflict of interest is to be decided by a resolution 
of the council or committee, as the case may be. 


 
(5) The presiding officer at a meeting at which a conflict of interest is declared shall ensure that a 
member identifying a conflict of interest leaves the meeting during consideration of the issue to 
which the conflict relates, and the secretary of the meeting shall record the fact and time of the 
departure of the member in the minutes. 


 
(6) A member who represents the college shall not assume a position if a conflict of interest is 
identified. 


 
(7) A member of the Professional Conduct Committee or the Discipline Committee who has a 
conflict of interest in relation to a particular complaint shall declare that interest and shall not take 
part in the investigation or hearing of the complaint. 
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Council review of delegated decisions 


30 A person who applies for a review of a decision delegated to the Executive Director pursuant to 
subsection 20(4) of the Act shall forward his or her application to council in writing, stating the 
reasons for the application, within 30 days of having received the decision of the Executive 
Director. 


 
Former regulatory bylaws repealed 
31 All former regulatory bylaws of the college are repealed. 


 
Coming into force 


32(1) In accordance with subsection 13(8) of The Physical Therapists Act, 1998, these bylaws come into 
force when they are approved by the Minister and published in The Saskatchewan Gazette.  
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REGULATORY BYLAW AMENDMENTS  
 
Restricted practising membership  
  


5(1) Restricted practising membership in the 
college is available to an individual who:  


  
(a) meets the requirements of clauses 
19(1)(a), (b), and (c) of the Act;  
  
(b) has successfully completed the written 
component of a recognized competency 
examination; and  
  
(c) submits a completed application in the 
form provided by the college 


 


Restricted practising membership  
  
5(1) Subject to subsection (1.1), restricted 
practising membership in the college is available 
to an individual who:  
  
(a) meets the requirements of clauses 19(1)(a), 
(b), and (c) of the Act;  
  
(b) has successfully completed the written 
component of a recognized competency 
examination; and  
  
(c) submits a completed application in the form 
provided by the college 
 
(1.1) A restricted practising membership is 
intended as a transitional status to provide a 
person with the ability to be a member of the 
college while obtaining all necessary 
qualifications for full practising membership and 
expires two years from the date on which the 
member successfully completed the written 
component of a recognized competency 
examination. 
 
(1.2) Notwithstanding subsection (1.1), 
where there are extenuating circumstances, 


Addition of 1.1 to limit the ability 
for individuals to move province 
to province with a Restricted 
license for unlimited years 
without taking the clinical 
component of the PCE.  
 
Addition of 1.2 to allow for 
extension of term in extenuating 
circumstances (such as COVID, 
where these individuals will have 
delayed access to the Clinical 
component of the exam)  
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the executive director may extend the two-
year period described in that subsection.  


Restricted practising licence  
 
14(1) A restricted practising member who submits a 
completed application in the form provided by the 
college is eligible to obtain a restricted practising 
licence.  
 
(2) A restricted practising licence is valid for a 
maximum of 24 months, during which time the 
member must successfully complete the oral/practical 
component of a recognized competency examination 
and obtain a full practising licence. 


Restricted practising licence  
 
14(1) A restricted practising member who submits 
a completed application in the form provided by 
the college is eligible to obtain a restricted 
practising licence.  
 
(2) delete  


To comply with above changes 
to membership.  
 
There is no need subsection 
(2). They will only qualify for 
the licence if they are a 
restricted practising member, 
and once that membership has 
expired they will no longer 
qualify for the licence.   


Regulatory Bylaw 12: 
Insurance and criminal record check required 


12 Every applicant for a practising licence of any 
kind shall: 


 
(a) maintain professional liability 


insurance in an amount not less 
than $5,000,000 on any one client 
or $5,000,000 maximum for the 
policy year, with no deductible; and 


 
(b) provide a satisfactory criminal record 


check. 
 


 
Insurance and criminal record check required  
12 Every applicant for a practicing licence of any 
kind shall:  


(a) maintain professional liability insurance 
that:  
            (i) is independent of any insurance 


that may be available through an 
employer;  


           (ii) provides coverage in an amount 
not less than $5,000,000 on any one 
client of $5,000,000 for the policy 
year with no deductible; and  


(b) provide a criminal record check. 


In order to meet the mandate to 
protect the public, the SCPT 
Council had recommended that 
all members have mandatory 
individual professional liability 
insurance as there have been 
instances in health care when 
employer-paid professional 
liability insurance did not provide 
appropriate coverage. 


Regulatory Bylaw 13(2): 
(2) A practising member who has not 


 
(2) A practising member who has not 
completed 1200 practice hours as 


Propose adding (a) to allow for a 
bridging program to be used to 
qualify someone for re-entry to 
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completed 1200 practice hours as described 
in clause (1)(a) is eligible to obtain a full 
practising licence but must satisfactorily 
complete a period of supervised practice: 


 
(a) under the direction of a member with a 


full practising licence who is approved by 
the council; 


 
(b) in a physical therapy facility or facilities 


approved by the council; and 
 


(c) for the total additional number of 
hours that would be required to be 
obtained to be eligible for full 
practising licensure in the current 
licence year and the next licence 
year; and 


(d) in accordance with a supervision 
agreement and a supervision plan 
approved by council, which plan is 
developed for the member by the 
member’s supervisor and includes 
provisions for monitoring the 
member’s practice, for personal 
intervention, and for any other 
matters that the member’s supervisor 
or council considers necessary. 


described in clause (1)(a) is eligible to 
obtain a full practising licence but must: 


(a) successfully complete a 
physical therapy bridging 
program recognized by the 
council; or 
(b) satisfactorily complete a 
period of supervised practice:  


(i) under the direction of 
a member with a full 
practising licence who is 
approved by the council  
(ii) in a physical therapy 
facility or facilities 
approved by the council; 
and  
(iii) for the total 
additional number of 
hours that would be 
required to be obtained 
to be eligible for full 
practising licensure in the 
current licence year and 
the next licence year; and  
(iv) in accordance with a 
supervision agreement 
and a supervision plan 
approved by council, 
which plan is developed 
for the member by the 
member’s supervisor and 
includes provisions for 


practice, as bridging programs 
have been validated for this 
purpose as well as their original 
purpose for IEPT’s.  
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 monitoring the member’s 


practice, for personal 
intervention, and for any 
other matters that the 
member’s supervisor or 
council considers 
necessary.” 


 
Regulatory Bylaw 27 
Advertising  
27(1) No member shall offer to guarantee a cure 
either verbally or in writing or by advertising or 
otherwise.  
  
(2) No member shall engage in any advertising, 
promotion, or other marketing activities that:  
  
(a) are inaccurate or capable of misleading the public 
either directly or indirectly;  
  
(b) misrepresents facts;  
  
(c) compares either directly, indirectly or by innuendo, 
the member's services or ability with that of any other 
practitioner or clinic, or promise or offer more 
effective service or better results than those available 
elsewhere;  
  
(d) deprecates another member or clinic as to service, 
ability or fees;  
  


27(1) No member shall offer to guarantee a cure 
either verbally or in writing or by advertising or 
otherwise.  
(2) No member shall engage in any advertising, 
promotion, or other marketing activities that:  


(a) are inaccurate or capable of 
misleading the public either directly or 
indirectly;  
(b) misrepresents facts;  
(c) compares either directly, indirectly or 
by innuendo, the member's services or 
ability with that of any other practitioner 
or clinic, or promise or offer more 
effective service or better results than 
those available elsewhere;  
(d) deprecates another member or clinic 
as to service, ability or fees;  
(e) create an unjustified expectation 
about the results the member can 
achieve;  
(f) are made under any false or misleading 
guise, or takes advantage, either 
physically, emotionally, or financially of 


Repeal second part of (2) h - 
promote a specific brand of 
drug, device, or equipment. 
As per membership discussion at 
2018 AGM – this was considered 
too limiting and deemed 
unnecessary in protection of the 
public. Physical therapists felt 
that they should be able to 
advise patients on different 
devices or equipment; they also 
felt that they should  have the 
ability to promote materials they 
have developed as professionals 
(ie: educational books; products 
that they have developed).  
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(e) create an unjustified expectation about the results 
the member can achieve;  
  
(f) are made under any false or misleading guise, or 
takes advantage, either physically, emotionally, or 
financially of any client, or uses coercion, duress, or 
harassment;  
  
(g) are incompatible with the best interests of the 
public or members, or tends to harm the standing of 
the physical therapy profession generally;  
  
(h) contain any testimonial or disclose the names of 
clients; or promote a specific brand of drug, device, 
or equipment.  
  
(i) Endorses any product for financial gain.  
  


any client, or uses coercion, duress, or 
harassment;  
(g) are incompatible with the best 
interests of the public or members, or 
tends to harm the standing of the physical 
therapy profession generally;  
(h) contain any testimonial or disclose the 
names of clients;  
(i) Endorses any product for financial gain. 


 


 





		Insurance and criminal record check required



